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COLLEGE PROFILE

Summary

Sector Independent/Non-Government

Co-educational Yes

No. of campuses 2

Year levels offered K-12

Registration period 1 Jan 2016 to 31 Dec 2020

Total student population 766 (as at the 2018 August census)

International student 
population

15 (as at the 2018 August census)

Staff population 121

ABN 90 553 423 792

CRICOS Provider No 01984B

Motto Soli Deo Gloria  

(For the glory of God alone)

Established by the Association for Christian Education Inc. in 1966, 
Rehoboth Christian College was the first parent-governed Christian 
school in Western Australia, and the second in Australia. The 
Association operates two campuses located in the southern suburbs 
of Perth:

Wilson Campus K-6 Kenwick Campus K-12

22 Dalton Place 94 Kenwick Road
WILSON WA 6107 KENWICK WA 6107

A Business Office is maintained at the Kenwick Campus, providing 
administrative support to the Board as well as financial, HR, project 
and other non-educational services to the College community.

Vision and Mission
Our Vision
By 2019, Rehoboth Christian College will be 

recognised for excellence in the provision of 

a distinctly Christian education program that 

honours Jesus Christ as Lord of all, utilising 

the bests innovations and resources of a  

21st century learning environment.

Our Mission
To partner with parents as a covenant 

community in order to support them in 

their task of nurturing and educating their 

children. We achieve this by developing 

structures that support and promote  

dynamic 21st century learning, stimulating 

the God-given creativity and curiosity 

of lifelong learners, and immersion in a 

Christian worldview.

4   REHOBOTH CHRISTIAN COLLEGE



Governance and Leadership
Upon enrolling their children at Rehoboth, parents opt to become 
Members or Affiliate Members of the Association. A Board drawn 
from this membership provides governance and strategic direction 
but is not involved in the day to day operations of the College.

The role of the Board is to ensure the maintenance of schools for 
children of Christian families where they may obtain the highest 
standard of education consistent with a Reformed interpretation 
of Scripture, in order to equip them to take a worthy place as 
Christians in church, state and society.

The Board maintains a suite of policies that clarify its duties and 
responsibilities and meets monthly (excluding January) to carry out 
Association business.

Board Members and Meeting Attendance: 

Board Member Role
Attendance 

(out of 11 meetings)

Chris van der Veen Chairman 11

Frank van der Kooy Vice-Chairman 8

Paul Nieuwkerk Treasurer 10

Jason van Schie Secretary 10

Andrew Matthews Board member 9

Karinda Olde Board member 10

Ben van der Kooy Board member 9

Bruce Whyatt Board member 4*

NB: Bruce Whyatt was appointed to the Board at the September 
meeting. 

The Board has appointed a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) whose 
primary responsibilities are to translate strategy into practice and 
facilitate the day to day operations of the College. The CEO has 
oversight of the Senior Leadership Team, which in 2018 consisted of:

Mr Mark Steyn CEO 

Mrs Marilyn Louwen Principal (Kenwick Secondary) 
Mrs Nicole Pleysier Principal (Kenwick Primary) 
Mrs Willy Pike Principal (Wilson Primary) 
Mrs Rachael Fairlamb Finance Manager

Our CEO is the primary contact for further information on the 
College and its policies and is available by appointment via the 
Business Office. 

Educational Philosophy and 
Strengths
We believe that each of our students has been created in the image 
of God (Genesis 1:27). Because of this, they deserve to be respected 
and valued. Our education programs and extra-curricular offerings 
are therefore selected and designed to allow students to explore 
the gifts that God has given them, and to provide opportunities to 
develop their individual skills. 

Our philosophy of education seeks to help students come to an 
understanding that their whole lives – academic, spiritual, emotional, 
social and physical – come under the Lordship of Jesus Christ.

Our approach is to view everything within the context of the 
“big picture” story of Scripture; a story that starts with what God 
intended (the Creation) before heading into what went wrong 
(the Fall, when sin marred the world). This leads to God’s plan 
to deal with the problem of sin (Redemption) and finishes with 
our response to God and the coming renewal of His creation 
(Restoration).

Rehoboth has a particular strength in developing and delivering 
distinctly Christian curriculum, and places great emphasis on the 
consideration and formulation of a Christian worldview. In 2018, 
teachers utilised the Biblical Threads concept for curriculum 
development as outlined in the National Institute for Christian 
Education publication, Transformation by Design. 

Teachers undergo continual Professional Learning to provide 
them with the tools and resources they need to take the standard 
Australian Curriculum, re-shape it according to a Christian 
worldview, and deliver it to our students. Embedded within our 
curriculum is the Creation-Fall-Redemption-Restoration model, as 
well as Biblical Threads, all of which guide teachers in framing key 
questions and learning outcomes.

Our educational philosophy 
can be summarised in three 
statements:
Purpose: Inviting students to see God’s 
purpose in all things by viewing the 
world through the lens of His Word and 
challenging them to think deeply and 
critically about it.

Partnership: Working together with the 
home and church to reinforce a Christian 
worldview so that students can see for 
themselves how the Christian life can be 
lived out.

Preparation: Training students to be 
disciples who know and love Jesus and are 
ready to be people of outstanding character 
and citizenship as they discover God’s plan 
for their lives.



Unique Programs and Extra-Curricular Offerings

Christian Studies and Church History
All students complete an age-appropriate Christian Studies course 
in each year level, while students in Year 5-9 have the opportunity 
to explore the history of the Christian church with a curriculum 
designed specifically for, and by, Rehoboth.

Missions
The outworking of our educational philosophy is evident in our 
missions programs, which commence in Primary School with 
supporting a sponsor child through weekly monetary donations 
before expanding to work with the Leonora Bush Mission in Year 
10, an Indonesia trip in Year 11, and a Philippines trip in Year 12. 
This latter trip operates as an alternative to leaver’s week, where 
students are encouraged to serve others by putting their faith into 
action over a two-week program.

Year 7-8 Endeavour Program
This program has been tailored to meet the needs of Year 7 and 8 
students as they make the transition from Primary to Secondary 
learning. The Endeavour curriculum is full of hands-on, learning-
rich activities which are designed to not only engage students, but 
also teach them problem-solving skills, community-based learning, 
higher-order thinking skills and ways of learning that will benefit 
their later years of study. 

Endeavour aims to lay the foundation for the key 21st century 
learning skills of communication, collaboration, critical thinking 
and creativity.

LEX@R
Learning Extension @ Rehoboth (LEX@R) is much more than a gifted 
and talented program, with selection based on a recommendation 
from a previous teacher, high marks in core subjects, other evidence 
of achievement and most importantly, a desire to explore the world. 
LEX@R utilises problem-based learning techniques to immerse 
students in projects that require lateral problem-solving skills and 
independent thinking. LEX@R operates in Year 5-6 and Year 7-8.

Literacy Support
Our Literacy Support program provides intensive or additional 
support for students and is run in place of mainstream Indonesian 
periods for selected students.

Sports
In Primary School, Rehoboth partners with the Western Australia 
Christian Schools Sports Association (WACSSA) to provide students 
with interschool sporting opportunities in athletics, swimming, 
basketball, soccer and volleyball. The Secondary School competes 
in the Associated and Catholic Colleges (ACC) competition for 
interschool sports. Internally, the College runs a soccer tournament 
in Term 2 and basketball competition in Term 3.

Emergency Services Cadets
Our Cadets program is well-supported by Secondary students who 
are committed to meeting each week and learning new skills, as 
well as helping others and working towards community service 
projects.

Technology in the Classroom
We are keen for students to utilise emerging technology in ways 
that extend their learning or that facilitate new ways of approaching 
problems. To that end, all students in Year 5-12 are issued with 
a College-owned device and provided access to a range of 
educational apps and the SEQTA Learning Management System. 
Junior students have access to iPad banks.

Attendance, reporting, and pastoral care modules of SEQTA 
were used throughout the year. These modules allow for early 
identification of, and intervention for, at-risk students by making 
student information available to all teachers.
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Instrumental Music Program (IMP)
Over 200 students participate in the College’s music program, 
which in 2018 catered for drums, flute, guitar, piano, violin and 
voice. Rehoboth recognises the educational value of music as well 
as the opportunity it presents for personal enrichment. The IMP 
seeks to teach students commitment, critical assessment, and time 
management skills while they learn their instrument. Involvement 
in one of the College’s music ensembles also provides students 
with opportunities to further develop their skills and confidence in 
actual performance settings.

Community Characteristics
Our student body is diverse in character, owing to various 
factors. Rehoboth draws from a large area of the southern Perth 
metropolitan region, extending to Aubin Grove, Armadale, Martin, 
High Wycombe, Ascot, East Perth, Ardross and Kardinya. Our 
CRICOS registration also allows for the enrolment of students with 
temporary Visa arrangements. 

The College is proud to have over fifty nationalities represented in 
its community, and we celebrate the diversity of God’s people in 
this way.

Most importantly, our community is characterised by a shared 
love for, and acknowledgement of, Jesus Christ as our Lord, 
saviour, and ultimate head. In this way, Rehoboth is a community 
of Christian families, each serving God in their local churches. 
These families believe that one of the most effective ways to meet 
their God-given responsibility to raise and nurture their children 
is in conjunction with the Christian school. To facilitate this, 
the College strongly emphasises a three-way partnership that 
provides consistency in communicating a Christian worldview 
across school, home, and church.

Engaging with Parents
Opportunities for parents and family members to engage with 
the College and their children’s learning are designed into our 
programs. For example, work samples books are used to encourage 
parents to comment on and discuss their children’s work and 
reports in Primary School, while student diaries were used 
extensively to communicate between parents and teachers on a 
daily basis. The launch of SEQTA Engage in 2018 also provided 
another major avenue for communicating with parents, providing 
access to their children’s timetables, reports, results and course 
overviews as well as communications from the College

Parents were also able assist in the classroom with small group 
work or reading, and our College Support Program continued to 
be a key avenue for parents to volunteer their time or expertise 
in many other ways. In addition, parents are provided with 
opportunities to serve as Parent Representatives at open days and 
excursions, busy bees, and renovation work in outdoor play areas, 
canteens, sports carnivals, and other areas as needed.

Pastoral Care
Rehoboth offers a variety of avenues for pastoral care, chiefly via 
our Chaplain, a position which is partly funded by the Australian 
Government Department of Education, Employment and 
Workplace Relations under the National School Chaplaincy and 
Student Welfare Program. 

The College maintains a zero-tolerance policy towards bullying 
and encourages students to adopt a Christian approach of “others 
before self” in their interactions, affirming that every member of our 
community is to be valued and respected because they bear the 
image of God.

For more information on Rehoboth, its educational 

philosophy and policies, please visit our website –  

rehoboth.wa.edu.au.



CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
Mr Chris van der Veen

Looking back at the 2018 school year, I am so thankful to our Lord for the staff, students and families that 
make up Rehoboth. We are blessed with a community that is committed to all aspects of our children’s 
growth, from their academic journey to their spiritual journey; from their physical growth to their emotional 
and social wellbeing.

This whole-child approach is no accident. It stems from our deep 
and abiding belief that Jesus Christ is, in the words of Hudson 
Taylor, “either Lord of all, or not Lord at all”.  If Jesus Christ is Lord 
of all, then that includes every aspect of how we raise, nurture and 
educate our children. In Deuteronomy 6:7, God commands the 
Israelites to impress His truths upon their children – “talk about 
them when you sit at home and when you walk along the road, 
when you lie down and when you get up”. In other words, there isn’t 
to be a facet of life that isn’t impacted by God. 

This is why Rehoboth exists – to offer Christian parents an 
opportunity for them to live out this instruction; to ensure that 
even their children’s education recognises God’s order and Jesus’ 
sovereignty. 

This is also why we operate as a Board drawn from the College’s 
parent membership, because God’s command wasn’t given to 
the State or some other body, but to believing parents. Board 
members are therefore faithful Christian men and women seeking 
to make Jesus Christ real in the lives of their children, just as 
you are. Ensuring that all teaching and learning at Rehoboth 
takes place from a Christian worldview is the Board’s single most 
important duty. While we may not always get the “how” of it right 
and we continually look to keep our strategy and direction fresh, 
ensuring Christ is at the centre of all learning is one area we will not 
compromise on.

2018 Focus Areas

Our capital works program continued to be a major focus for the 
Board, with the gymnasium at Wilson almost completed and the 
classroom block at Kenwick underway. The Board was also pleased 
with renovations to the Secondary Staffroom, expansion of the 
Business Office, and upgrades to classrooms at Wilson, all of which 
contribute towards a wonderful working environment for staff and 
learning spaces for students. We look forward to the opening of the 
Wilson gym in early 2019 and seeing students enjoying the use of 
this superb space. 

2018 also saw new Collective Workplace Agreements negotiated. 
These will be finalised in 2019, but the Board is very happy that 
staff salaries, and in particular those of teachers, will remain 
competitive. This helps to ensure that Rehoboth can attract and 
retain high-quality Christian staff.

We were also very happy to see the progress made in implementing 
the Locus2019 Strategic Plan. The rollout of SEQTA Engage and 
Learn was a key component of this, and we look forward to seeing 
how this platform can be utilised in various ways; in particular, 
the ability for students to take greater ownership of their learning 
via goalsetting, formative assessments, homework schedules 
and the ability to communicate directly with their teachers. The 
implementation of Locus2019 will continue to be a focus, and as 
we assess what has been achieved and what is still on the radar, the 
Board looks forward to refreshing the vision and strategic direction 
of the College.

The Board also welcomed two new members in 2019 – Mrs Karinda 
Olde and Mr Bruce Whyatt. They have proven to be valuable 
members of the team and we are thankful for the fresh perspective 
they have brought. We are keen for the Board to represent the 
diversity of the College community and welcome expressions of 
interest from Association Members. Please consider whether this 
might be an area you could contribute to in the life of the College.

Excellence in All Things

At the end of 2018, the College is in a good place. Whether it be 
finances, staffing, students or community, we see God present 
and at work in life at Rehoboth, and for this we are so thankful. 
Decisions to expand our facilities or improve programs are not 
taken at a single Board meeting. They are the result of many years 
of planning, often from multiple Boards, and such is the case today. 
We are reaping the benefits of groundwork laid by men and women 
in years past who had the vision to see the necessity of improving 
facilities, to see that the College needed to remain competitive 
in the area of salaries, to invest in professional development on 
Christian worldview and integrating Christian perspectives in the 
curriculum. 

As you reflect on 2018, our hope is that you will see evidence that the 
Board has respected this legacy while also laying the groundwork 
for the Rehoboth of the next 10-12 years. Now, as we look ahead to 
2019, our prayer is that we will pursue excellence in all things as we 
seek to honour God and give Him the glory in all things.
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CEO’S REPORT
Mr Mark Steyn

Independent Schools Queensland (ISQ) conduct a “What Parents Want” survey every four years, helping to 
shed light on the factors that influence parents’ decisions to send their children to an independent school, 
whether it be faith-based, Catholic or secular. 

Their 2018 survey revealed some interesting findings:

• 70% of parents base their decision wholly or to a significant 
degree on the appearance of the school and its facilities

• 67% of parents are influenced by family, friends and colleagues

• 65% of parents are investigating schooling options 2+ years in 
advance

• 53% of parents base their final decision wholly or to a 
significant degree on their child’s opinion

• 46% of parents only consider independent schooling options

• “Preparation for students to fulfil their potential in later life” has 
consistently ranked at the top of the list for reasons why parents 
consider an independent school over State or Catholic schools

• One parent responded that “I chose an independent school 
because of learning opportunities in the classroom… I want my 
child to reach their full potential without being disadvantaged 

by others” (emphasis mine)

These results are a real mixed bag. While some statistics align 
with our own experience – the influence of family and friends, 
investigating schools 2+ years in advance – others simply do not. 
For example, we would generally agree with the idea that schooling 
should help all children to reach their full potential. On the other 
hand, the suggestion that others will get in the way of “my” child’s 
progress strikes me as particularly self-serving. Community is 
fundamental to the Christian faith and to life at Rehoboth. Coupled 
with our view that all students are made in the image of God, I hope 
we would never see any individual child as a disadvantage. On the 
contrary, we hold that each student has the potential to be a future 
influencer for Christ in whatever circumstances He has planned for 
them. This view promotes service and meeting the needs of others 
above our own, just as Christ met our greatest need, and is one 
of the ways in which a Christian education is distinct from other 
schools.

I look at our own 2018 Parent Survey results and see a marked 
difference (you can read more about these results on the 
Community Satisfaction page). 66% of our parents chose Rehoboth 
because of the College’s Christian character, whether that be in 
development and delivery of curriculum, the faith and values we 
espouse, the Christian community, or the development of students’ 
Christian character. 

Also in stark contrast to ISQ’s survey are the top three things that 
Rehoboth parents value most about their child’s education: 

1. Students have opportunities to explore their gifting and are 
encouraged to persevere, be resilient and achieve their best

2. Faith and values

3. Christian community and learning environment

I am thrilled that these are the qualities parents look for, and expect 
from, Rehoboth. They hold us to the highest standard, and they 
reflect the hard work our teachers and leadership have put in over 
2018 to better understand Christian education, how to program 
and develop lessons with Christian perspectives, and how to best 
deliver those programs to students in order to maximise their 
learning and to see God at work in His creation.

God has seen fit to bless Rehoboth as we look back over the last 
twelve months to see all that’s been achieved. Consider the following:

• We welcomed 13 new staff who have since taken to life at 
Rehoboth “like a duck to water,” capturing the vision and 
mission of the College as they engage with their students. 

• More than 100 brand new children and their families began 
their Rehoboth journey. This continues a trend of consistent 
growth over the past five years.

• Over $3 million was directly invested in new infrastructure and 
learning spaces across both campuses. 

• Over $5 million was invested in direct classroom teaching and 
learning

• Almost $6 million was committed to staff salaries, helping to 
ensure that teachers are paid at competitive rates. 

Money isn’t everything and we prayerfully commit all things to God, 
asking Him to enable us to meet our needs and obligations. With 
this in mind, I cite these figures to demonstrate how the College 
is growing and the key areas we are watching. We will continue to 
plan accordingly as Rehoboth makes the transition from a small to 
medium-sized College, enabling us to extend a distinctly Christian 
education to as many families as possible.

Thank you for your prayers over 2018. Thank you for your comments 
and feedback and visits. Thank you for your commitment to 
Rehoboth, the Association, and to Christian education in general. 
It is a worthwhile and important cause that you and I are a part of, 
and I look forward to what 2019 will bring.
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Principals (Primary) Report
Mrs Willy Pike (Wilson) 
Mrs Nicole Pleysier (Kenwick)

For this year’s Annual Report, we took the initiatives from our operational plan, Focus2018, and addressed 
each of the areas. In some cases, significantly more was achieved than we could have dreamed of, and others 
are still a work in progress. On the whole as we look back at 2018, it is evident that God’s hand has been 
guiding us as a collective Primary School.

Professional Learning 
Communities

The concept of Professional Learning 
Communities has grown to be a vibrant part 
of the Rehoboth culture. Previously, the 
only substantial contact Primary teachers 
had with each other was in the staff room. 
By reducing the number of administration 
meetings and utilising technologies 
available for information output, we have 
carved out time for teachers to spend 
time with each other. This has resulted in 
natural mentoring, sharing of ideas and 
collegial enterprises designed to improve 
student learning. As teachers become 
more accustomed to this way of planning, 
we anticipate it will ultimately result in a 
lightening workload. We have also seen 
people’s gifts coming to the fore and an 
increase in output in some bigger picture 
thinking.

Habits of Mind (HoM), Mindset 
and Agile Learning

Last year, the three Principals and a 
number of key staff attended a “Mindful by 
Design” PD facilitated by James Anderson. 
James has worked with the ideas of Carol 
Dweck in her research about fixed and 

growth mindsets, and Art Costa’s work in 
developing the sixteen “Habits of Mind” 
and melded them together to help teachers 
understand how to help their students to 
think more intelligently.

While this is not a new idea, it gives us a 
language and structure to help us as a 
College to assist students in reaching their 
potential. At the end of the year, we agreed 
to subscribe to James’ online course that 
allows the whole staff to engage in the 
process of professional learning in this area.

Project-Based Learning

Project-Based Learning has been a fairly 
recent, but highly effective addition at 
Rehoboth. However, for the sake of clarity, 
the decision was taken at the end of 
2018 to refer to this style of teaching and 
learning as Problem-Based Learning. The 
differentiator being that “projects” are often 
misunderstood as involving an individual 
working on a subject that culminates in 
an A2 poster or PowerPoint presentaiton. 
While it can be that, it is also much 
deeper and involves the use of the “4Cs” – 
collaboration, creativity, communication 
and critical thinking.

In 2018 we embarked on a massive 
undertaking with our inaugural Project 
Week. The aim was to set aside a week 
where teachers carved out time from their 
regular curriculum to have the freedom to 
investigate a College-wide theme or problem.

This took considerable planning, and 
commenced at the end of 2017 with the 
appointment of a Project Week “think tank” 
who came up with the idea of finding ways 
to reduce the waste in the College by 50% 
in Term 3. With professional learning and 
sustained learning in this area, the whole 
College oriented its thinking towards this 
goal, with each area of the College taking on 
a different waste problem to solve.  

The Year 1-2 group tackled the problem 
of waste in packaging, particularly at 
school. Year 3-4 classes looked at plastic 
waste and its effect on a larger scale on 
the environment, while Year 5-6 students 
focussed on food waste. The culmination 
of the week was celebrated with an open 
night for parents to come and see what the 
children had learned.  This was an excellent 
night with an amazing sense of community, 
and it was a pleasure to see parents 
engaged in their children’s learning.
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Learn and Engage

The two SEQTA portals “Learn” (for 
students) and “Engage” (for parents) were 
launched in 2018. At the same time, we also 
introduced Consent2Go. While the initial 
process of setting up parents and helping 
them understand how it all worked had 
some challenges, there has been much 
positive feedback. As with all things new, it 
will take time for all parties to understand 
and utilise this powerful learning platform 
to its full potential. 2019 will see some 
significant gains in this area as we 
consolidate expectations and communicate 
further with parents. 

Growth and Development 

SEQTA was utilised to provide feedback 
not only at the end of students’ learning 
in the form of Semester reports, but also 
throughout the learning process. Teachers 
participated in a number of workshops 
to use this module, as well as training on 
providing specific, relevant and effective 
feedback itself. Students increasingly 
became more responsible for their own 
learning as they identified learning goals 
and sought to use the feedback teachers 
provided effectively. 

Teachers also spent time working in 
their Professional Learning Communities 
to reflect on and develop assessments 
that would provide information on any 
adjustments required in their teaching as 
well on students’ progress. 

We looked at the information that NAPLAN 
provides us and made the decision, in 
Primary, to use the results of the 2017 
Reading and Numeracy tests as a baseline 
for each student, against which to measure 

their progress. Each year students will sit the 
appropriate test and teachers will be able to 
monitor their progress against the baseline. 

While ensuring that we have a clear 
understanding of each child’s academic 
progress, we believe that success is far 
more than that. We want our students to be 
curious, to become lifelong learners, and to 
use and develop their gifting in obedience 
to God so that they can serve Him and 
others around them. The many and varied 
opportunities presented to students in 
extra-curricular activities, Project Week and 
the broad range of learning areas ensure 
that all students have the opportunity 
to discover and develop their God-given 
talents.

A Pastoral Care Task Group was set up to 
investigate the best way to monitor and 
record information about each student. The 
goal of pastoral care is to help our students 
confidently to discover who they are 
(identity), how and where they fit into God’s 
big picture (purpose), knowing deeply how 
God sees them through Christ’s redeeming 
work and living that out. Teachers spent 
time discussing this as well as using SEQTA 
to reflect this goal. 

Establishing Christian Studies as 
our Flagship Program

As a Christian College, our Christian Studies 
program should be what defines us, and 
so the process of establishing a Scope 
and Sequence and the development of 
a discipleship model is of the utmost 
importance. We have been on a journey of 
reflection, deep thinking, discussion and 
investigation throughout 2018 while we 
endeavoured to ensure that we use the 

right program to develop students’ Biblical 
worldview. God’s leading and provision 
were particularly evident as we appointed 
Campbell Murray as our Christian Studies 
Coordinator for the College, and we look 
forward to the work that he will do in 2019.

One of the major events of the year was 
the visit by Patricia Weerakoon, a Christian 
medical doctor from Sri Lanka, who is a 
noted academic, sexologist and author. 
Patricia presented a parent evening and 
student workshops where she explored the 
issues around sexuality, gender and identity 
from a Christian perspective.

Enhanced Use of Threads

We had another excellent professional 
learning opportunity at the beginning of 
2018, presented by delegates from NICE 
(National Institute for Christian Education). 
This formed the third of three PLs helping 
teachers and leaders in the College 
understand how to embed the Biblical 
Threads in the classroom. Some of the 
other strategies that we used to help the 
Threads become a common language 
included:

• a Threads poster in every classroom

• Threads scheduled as fortnightly themes 
in the classroom and for assembly items

• devotions for both staff and students 
centred on the Threads

• discussions during the enrolment 
process about how we develop and 
deliver Christian education

• Early Childhood students looking 
particularly at building communities as 
they learn about themselves and their 
families
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• Project Week, where “Caretaking the 
Earth” and “Unwrapping Gifts” threads 
were evident as teachers found out more 
about the students in their groups and 
worked on their areas of gifting

• Year 6 Leadership Teams as they practised 
hospitality, imitated humility, sought 
justice and showed mercy 

• Teachers as they presented and engaged 
in devotions around the threads and 
discussed ways in which to present these 
to students and weave them into their 
programming.

Improved Learning Support, 
Special Needs and EAL/D

Rehoboth holds the view that all our 
students are made in the image of God and 
that we need to cater for the needs of each 
one of them. This extends to the support or 
extension of their learning, and that quality 
Christian education should be available to 
all of them. Early in 2018 we met with our 
School Psychologist to discuss the three-
tiered model of Response to Intervention 
and how we identify and support students 
with Learning Difficulties. Teachers received 
professional learning in the areas of 
working flexibly with various student skill 
levels within a classroom, differentiation 
and using data to inform learning programs. 
This ensures that all students have access 
to a robust and rigorous Numeracy and 
Literacy curriculum. We focused on 
Curriculum Adjustment Plans (CAPs) to 
support those students who needed extra 
help with some concepts and then also 
identified students who would benefit 
from intervention and created Individual 
Education Plans (IEPs) for them. 

Our Learning Support Coordinators at each 
campus ensured that staff working with 
students received the required professional 
learning. This year we employed a 
significant number of Education Assistants 
and we have seen some excellent results 
overall as well as with specific students, 
particularly those who were part of the 
Reading Mastery Program. 

Facilities

At Wilson, we watched with anticipation 
as the new gymnasium was constructed. 
This building includes a new staffroom, 
reception area, café, canteen, sound desk, 
interview room and a number of senior 
staff offices upstairs. Additional parking has 
also been provided and we look forward to 
moving in at the beginning of 2019. 

Throughout the year rendering was added 
to the existing buildings, providing a much-
needed update of our facilities. Work in 
the Early Childhood play areas continued 
as we added a river bed and climbing wall 
there. The Year 6 students provided a Frog 
Pond as their farewell gift to the school. The 
wall between the Year 5 and 6 classrooms 
was removed and the room refurbished to 
create a wonderful learning space for our 
senior students in 2019. 

At Kenwick there have been minor 
improvements around the school during 
the year; however, excitement set in as 
we watched months of planning come to 
fruition as the wall panels were lifted into 
place on the new classroom block. We are 
looking forward to the completion of this 
building in 2019.

Staffing – Wilson

Mrs Narelle Henderson has been a teacher 
in the Junior Primary at Kenwick for many 
years and she has a particular interest in 
Physical Education for our younger students. 
This year she taught PE to our Year 1-2 
students, as she continues to do at Kenwick.

Mrs Andrea Herweynen, who has a child 
at the Kenwick Campus, joined us in 2018 
as the DOTT teacher in Pre-Primary Blue 
and Kindy, taking these classes when the 
teachers took some time to attend to duties 
other than teaching. It has been wonderful 
to see her interesting Devotions and 
Science lessons as she took children on a 
journey of discovery each week.

Miss Heidi Sheppard has worked with us 
in a number of roles over the last couple 
of years and joined us once again as 
an Education Assistant with the Year 1 
students. We appreciate her gentle nature 
and her ability to help those students who 
need some extra one-on-one time to assist 
their learning.

Mrs Renee Sherlock has worked with us as a 
relief teacher in the Early Childhood section 
of the College, as well as in the older year 
levels across both campuses. This year she 
was the DOTT teacher for Pre-Primary Red 
and also took various subject areas across 
the Year 1-4/5 classes. We have appreciated 
her calm and professional manner and her 
ability to step into any role at a moment’s 
notice and do a great job. 

We were pleased to welcome Mrs Sonia Ong 
to the role of Kindy Education Assistant as 
we had a bigger class. Her calm and gentle 
manner quickly endeared her to the students 
and she has been a wonderful addition to 
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the team in Early Childhood this year.

It was with both sadness and joy that 
we shared the news that Mrs Sarah Oliva 
would be leaving us at the end of Term 
1. Sarah worked with us for the past four 
years and has worked alongside Mr Craig 
Hunter with the Year 4 and Year 5 students. 
An opportunity to work for the Lord in 
administration with a charitable institution 
arose and she accepted the challenge. We 
thank her for her contribution to Rehoboth 
and wish her all the very best as she 
begins this new season in her life. We have 
benefitted from her cheerful disposition 
and the way she has shared God’s love with 
both the staff and the students. We have 
appreciated her artistic talents which she 
put to good use at our Graduation Evening 
and will miss her greatly in many ways. 

We were delighted to be able to announce 
that Miss Megan Kenny would be taking 
on the position of team teacher with Mr 
Hunter at the beginning of Term 2. Megan 
married Lance in September and is now Mrs 
Henderson. 

Mrs Heidi Dijkstra, one of our Education 
Assistants who had been working with the 
Pre-Primary Red class in 2018, finished her 
time with us in May to go on Maternity Leave. 
We loved having her as a member of our 
Early Childhood staff. Judah Zachary duly 
arrived on 22 July and we pray for God’s 
richest blessing for them as they start this 
new and very special season in their lives. 

We also said goodbye to Mrs Leonie 
Groenenboom at the end of the year, who 
has been teaching at Rehoboth for almost 
eight years. Her husband accepted a 
position with International Justice Mission 

in Sydney. Leonie was instrumental in the 
establishment of the Bible Garden at Wilson 
and has also faithfully taken her Year 3/4 
students to Agmaroy Nursing Home to sing 
and chat with the residents there. This has 
been a wonderful ministry to them as well 
as helping students live out their love for 
Jesus in a special way. We will miss her 
deeply, but we pray that God will continue 
to lead her and her husband as they 
continue to serve Him.

Staffing – Kenwick

In 2018 we were blessed with the dynamic 
duo in Kindy of Mrs Monica van Dam 
heading up the Kindy Blue class and Mrs 
Jacqueline Nieuwkerk taking the Kindy Red 
class. Both have used their amazing gifts 
and energy and have shown a heart for the 
College as a whole. We have seen amazing 
things happen in the Early Childhood area 
as they have used their passion to further 
student learning in their classrooms.

Miss Esther Graham joined Mrs van Dam in 
the Kindy area as an Education Assistant. 
Esther has been a delightful addition to the 
staffroom. She is a calm presence and has a 
wonderful, gentle nature with the children.

We saw considerable changes in Year 2 over 
2018.  Mrs Katherine Tebbit transferred from 
Wilson to Kenwick to fill a position created 
by the growth in the school. We were 
thrilled as Katherine brought a sense of fun 
and enthusiasm to her role. Fairly early in 
the year, we discovered that it would only 
be a short while that we would have her as 
little Timothy Tebbit was born in October. 
Mrs Liesbeth McClure took over in Year 2 
and did a marvellous job of providing a 
smooth transition for the students.

It was lovely to have Mrs Kristen Joubert 
join us for a term in Pre-Primary. Kristen 
and her husband were also blessed with a 
baby girl, Indiana, in August.

Mrs Rachael Hall rejoined us for a short 
while until she left for Maternity Leave. She 
and her husband were blessed with Ollie, a 
brother for Ashton.

While Mr Aaron Norman has been on staff 
as the Year 5/6 teacher for a couple of years 
now, in 2018 he took on the role as STEAM 
(Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and 
Maths) Coordinator for the Primary. He has 
driven considerable growth in robotics and 
coding in a relatively short time.

Mrs Hannah Bargerbos, Mrs Kate Witcombe 
and Mrs Renee Sherlock all joined us for 
various roles as DOTT relief teachers.  All 
three have been a blessing to the students 
as they exercised their gifts.
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Principal (Secondary) Report 
Mrs Marilyn Louwen

2018 has been a year of blessing, illness, new life, joy, challenge and growth through valuable learning 
experiences for staff and students.  

We welcomed seven new staff to 
Secondary, with each becoming a valued 
member of the team, sharing their love for 
God, their personality, their skills and their 
desire to see young people grow. 

Miss Chelsea Bracegirdle joined our HASS 
team. She came to us from Southern Hills 
Christian College where she taught for three 
years, recently holding the position of Head 
of HASS. When she is not assisting students 
with their learning, Miss Bracegirdle can be 
found dancing, rock climbing, kayaking, 
surfing, reading, cooking, or painting. 

Mr Kyle Dougherty joined our English team 
for his first formal teaching position. He has 
achieved high standards in his studies and 
is keen to use his skills in leading student 
learning. Mr Dougherty is married and 
has three young children who he enjoys 
spending time with. He also enjoys board 
and card games, music, and film. 

Mr Troy Eikelboom is the newest member 
of our Maths team, though not new to 
Rehoboth having been a student here and 
a valued part of the Facilities team while 
completing his studies. Mr Eikelboom came 
to us from John Tonkin College, is married 
and has two young children. He enjoys 
sport, gardening, fishing, and kayaking. 

Mr Andy Yu came to Rehoboth from 
Kelmscott Senior High School where he 
taught for three years. He is part of our 
Science team teaching Chemistry, General 

Science and Digital Technologies. Mr Yu 
is married and has a son who he enjoys 
spending time with. He also enjoys travelling, 
helping others, cooking and swimming. 

Mrs Caroline van Rensburg joined our 
Educational Support team assisting Year 
9-12 students using her excellent abilities 
and passion to see them grow in their 
learning. She is married with two daughters 
and enjoys being with others, cooking and 
the outdoors. 

Mrs Shevaun Sunderland is married, has 
four children and a heart for mission, 
moving with her family between countries 
to serve God amongst His people. She is a 
passionate lady who enjoys cooking, God’s 
world, and interacting with young people. 
Mrs Sunderland is supporting Years 9-12 
students. 

Mrs Berenice Rode has joined the Year 7-8 
Endeavour team to provide educational 
support for students. She is married, has 
a daughter and enjoys reading, sharing 
life skills, and assisting others to build 
confidence in all areas of their lives.

Secondary staff were blessed and 
encouraged as they moved into a 
beautifully renovated staffroom with 
space to enjoy fellowship and food at the 
beginning of the year. This increased space 
has been invaluable for us with an indoor 
and outdoor setting. 

“For by grace you have been 

saved through faith. And this 

is not your own doing; it is 

the gift of God, not a result 

of works, so that no one 

may boast.  For we are his 

workmanship, created in Christ 

Jesus for good works, which God 

prepared beforehand, that we 

should walk in them”  

– Ephesians 2:8-10
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We began the year with a Professional 
Learning day facilitated by CEN, on the 
application of the “Threads” system taken 
from the NICE publication Transformation 

by Design. Threads are “the specific 
expressions of what it means to be 
responsive disciples of Jesus. Threads 
are “action responses, qualities, or 
characteristics that we desire students to 
develop” (Transformation by Design p22) 
in response to the Biblical perspective on 
a given issue or problem. We placed a list 
of the Threads in each classroom in order 
to draw students’ attention to them, and 
keep them in the forefront of teachers’ 
minds so that they could begin using them 
in conversation and to develop a common 
language. We also used the Threads as 
focus points during devotions.

21st century learning skills were advanced 
amongst the Year 7-12 staff as they 
continued to build the Professional 
Learning Communities they had previously 
established both in and across subject 
faculties. Collaboration was increased 
amongst staff and students as we 
participated in Project Week, where 
students were challenged to develop 
solutions to reduce our footprint by 50% in 
the areas of water, e-waste and paper waste. 
Project Week culminated in a successful 
Presentation Night where we could share 
with families all that we had learnt. 

We have continued to develop the skills 
and use of SEQTA for teachers, students 
and parents to improve communication 
regarding individual lessons, assessment, 
learning progress and events. Secondary 
teachers have begun to use less 
summative, more formative feedback 
with students, resulting in improved 
assessments coming from a variety of 
formats. A necessary part of this process 
has been to redefine what we mean by 
“success” with staff and students.

Teachers have also continued to upskill in 
the use of NAPLAN and OLNA data so that 
this information can be used to inform the 
learning process.

We have been blessed this year to increase 
our Education Support staff to assist with 
developing individual pathways for our 
students and to map their needs and 
abilities. We have begun establishing 
the Award Scheme Development and 
Accreditation Network (ASDAN) program 
to supply a pathway for students who will 
benefit from this. We have trained teachers 
and support staff and run the initial 
program for three students. 

Students enjoyed opportunities to share 
their musical talents with people at Royal 
Perth Hospital, their artistic skills through 
the Canning Arts Show, and improving 
their fitness and competing against 
other schools to achieve second place in 
Swimming and Athletics events as we have 
unwrapped our gifts. 

Through a variety of academic learning 
opportunities, everyday decision making, 
camps and social events our students and 
staff have grown tremendously. We have 
grown to know more about each other, the 
needs of others and more about the world 
we live in through our Leonora, Indonesian 
and Philippines mission trips as we have 
built community. We have rejoiced with 
students who have made their decision to 
walk with God, those who are walking with 
God and are standing up for Truth along 
with those who share God’s love with others 
each day through their words and example. 

During 2018 we continued to discuss our 
curriculum mapping of Christian Studies. 
We are working towards the development 
of an all-encompassing discipleship model. 
The close of the year saw the appointment 
of Mr Campbell Murray as the Christian 
Studies Coordinator who will head up the 
project of establishing Christian Studies as 
our flagship program.

 At the close of 2018 we said farewell to 
Miss Anne Webster, who celebrate 44 
years serving the Rehoboth community 
with God’s guidance as she moves into 
retirement. We also said farewell to 
Mrs Sheela Nathan as she moves on to 
complete her doctorate and to seek God’s 
next plan for her, and to Miss Jessica Khoo 
who moves onto Kingsway Christian 
College to join the Music faculty there. 

In my first year as Principal, I feel blessed 
to continue God’s work here at Rehoboth, 
following in His wisdom from those 
who have laid the foundations. It has 
been wonderful to see staff take on new 
leadership roles using their talents and 
growing their skills. It has been a privilege 
to support students reach for their goals.
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STUDENT POPULATION AND ATTENDANCE
Population and Attendance Summary

Area of College Female Male Total
Average 

Attendance %

Early Learning (K-PP) 63 88 151 91

Lower Primary (Year 1-2) 62 53 115 94

Middle Primary (Year 3-4) 56 72 128 95

Upper Primary (Year 5-6) 59 56 115 96

Endeavour (Year 7-8) 47 53 100 96

Lower Secondary (Year 9-10) 48 35 83 95

Senior Secondary (Year 11-12) 32 42 74 94

Total 367 399 766 94

International Students

Rehoboth is a registered education provider under the 
Commonwealth Register of Institutions and Courses for Overseas 
Students (CRICOS) scheme. This enables the College to enrol 
students studying in Australia on student Visas. Registered providers 
must meet the requirements of the Education Services for Overseas 

Students Act 2000 (ESOS Act).

Attendance figures for international students are incorporated 
into the Population and Attendance Summary above. The table 
to the right shows the number of international students enrolled 
at Rehoboth in 2018. These figures are also included in the total 
student population summary.

Area of College Female Male Total

Early Learning (K-PP) 2 – 2

Lower Primary (Year 1-2) 1 1 2

Middle Primary (Year 3-4) 1 1 2

Upper Primary (Year 5-6) 1 2 3

Endeavour (Year 7-8) – 1 1

Lower Secondary (Year 9-10) 2 – 2

Senior Secondary (Year 11-12) 3 1 4

Total 10 6 16
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Comparative Population Summary 2012-2018

The graph below shows movements in the student population over 
the past seven years, as taken from the February and August census 
dates each year. The respective peak and drop between Kenwick 
Secondary and Kenwick Primary in 2015 is due to Year 7 formally 
becoming part of the Secondary School.

4.3%  
Overall growth  

2017-2018
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Key Student Outcomes: NAPLAN and OLNA
2018 NAPLAN Results

NAPLAN testing is conducted annually in Years 3, 5, 7 and 9. 2018 testing took place 15-18 May. NAPLAN 
allows each student and group performance to be measured against common national standards, providing 
teachers with useful data to inform their planning and classroom teaching in literacy and numeracy and 
assisting the College in monitoring student and cohort progress. 

It is worth noting that NAPLAN represent a student’s achievement 
on one assessment that is conducted on a single day in the year, 
so while the testing is useful for benchmarking and data collection, 
it is not wholly representative of a student’s overall progress and 
potential.

When reading the following results, keep in mind that direct 
comparisons are limited in scope given the smaller sample size at 
Rehoboth. Our relatively small class sizes mean that the results of 
a few students at either end of the spectrum can significantly skew 
results positively or negatively. 

Year 9 Results
It is very encouraging to see the steady rate of growth and 
development taking place between Year 7 and Year 9, as the 2018 
results show improvement in all areas (especially Numeracy) within 
this cohort. A feature of the Year 9 cohort’s performance is their 
extremely strong results across the board.

In terms of the results, Rehoboth’s means significantly exceeded 
both State and National means, as well as the results of other 
similar schools in all five areas tested, as shown in Table 1, which 
are excellent results. Compared to the State means, Numeracy 
(+120), Grammar and Punctuation (+49), Reading (+42), Spelling 
(+41) and Writing (+32) are all relative strengths for this group. 

The cohort of 43 students is a large enough group for the results to 
be quite statistically reliable.

Table 1:  Percentage of Year 9 students at or above 
the National minimum benchmark

Reading 93%

Writing 98%

Spelling 91%

Grammar 91%

Numeracy 98%

Table 2:  Rehoboth Year 9 means compared to State 
and National means

Rehoboth State National
Similar 
School*

Reading 631 589 584 606

Writing 583 551 542 573

Spelling 627 586 583 599

Grammar 634 585 580 609

Numeracy 622 502 596 617

* This indicates schools of similar size, location and demographics
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Year 7 Results 
Year 7 students performed above the State and National means 
in all areas tested. Grammar (+43), Spelling (+35), Numeracy (+34), 
Reading (+27) and Writing (+19) all showed solid progress. The 
cohort of 55 students is a large enough group for the results to be 
quite statistically reliable. Some of our special needs students in 
Year 7 did not sit the 2018 NAPLAN tests.

Table 3:  Percentage of Year 7 students at or above 
National minimum benchmark

Reading 89%

Writing 89%

Spelling 93%

Grammar 89%

Numeracy 96%

Table 4:  Rehoboth Year 7 means compared to State 
and National means

Rehoboth State National
Similar 
School

Reading 566 539 542 544

Writing 524 505 505 518

Spelling 580 545 545 553

Grammar 585 542 544 555

Numeracy 583 549 548 557

Year 5 Results

Graph 1: Rehoboth and National Means 
Comparison

 
2018 Year 5 data for Wilson and Kenwick has been combined. A 
comparison with National benchmarks and the NAPLAN Year 5 
standards indicate that the Rehoboth mean is above the National 
Schools Mean in all areas tested. Numeracy (+49), Reading (+42) 
and Spelling (+43) were particular areas of strengths for our Year 5 
students.

Graph 2: Rehoboth and National Growth 
Comparison

Graph 2 shows the points of comparison between Rehoboth 
and National growth between Year 3 and Year 5. The graph 
indicates that Rehoboth students experienced a greater degree of 
growth than the National average in all learning areas, which is a 
wonderful result.

Year 3 Results

Graph 3: Rehoboth and National Means 
Comparison

2018 Year 3 data for Wilson and Kenwick has been combined. A 
comparison with National benchmarks and the NAPLAN Year 3 
standards indicate that the Rehoboth mean is above the National 
Schools mean in all areas tested. Spelling (+28) and Numeracy (+25) 
in particular were strengths for our Year 3 students, and we look 
forward to seeing their progress when they come to sit their Year 5 
NAPLAN.
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2017 OLNA Results
The Online Literacy and Numeracy Assessment (OLNA) was 
designed by the School Curriculum and Standards Authority (SCSA) 
to measure literacy and numeracy skills identified as necessary for 
functioning in society post-senior secondary schooling.

From 2016, Year 12 students have been required to meet a 
minimum standard for literacy and numeracy to achieve their West 
Australia Certificate of Education (WACE). Students can meet this 
minimum standard either by achieving Band 8 or higher in the 
NAPLAN reading, writing and numeracy tests in Year 9 or through 
OLNA testing.

The 2018 results show an encouraging and big improvement over 
the course of the year, and it is pleasing that all Year 12 students 
met the minimum standards. 

Extra literacy and numeracy tutoring in 2018 has seen great 
improvement in supporting our students in demonstrating the 
minimum OLNA requirements to achieve their WACE. This support 
will continue into 2019 for Year 11 and Year 10 students still to meet 
the benchmarks.

Year 12 (38 students)

All students achieved the minimum Band 8 benchmark to be 
awarded the WACE. 

Year 11 (33 students)

Thirty-one students have achieved the minimum benchmarks 
in all categories, with two students in Year 11 having not yet met 
the benchmark as of 2018. These students will have two further 
opportunities in 2019 to sit OLNA testing in order to achieve the 
benchmark required for WACE.

Year 10 (37 students)

Thirty-two students have achieved the minimum benchmarks in 
all categories, with five students in Year 10 not yet meeting the 
minimum Band 8 benchmark in one or more areas. Three of these 
are in numeracy; two are in reading; and two are in writing. These 
students have four further opportunities in 2019 and 2020 to 
demonstrate the required levels. 

Table 9:  Percentage of Year 10-12 students who 
have demonstrated the minimum standards

Numeracy Reading Writing

Year 10 91% 94% 94%

Year 11 94% 100% 100%

Year 12 100% 100% 100%
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STUDENT AWARDS
The following major awards were presented during Graduations and Celebration evenings held 3-6 
December 2018:

Kenwick Year 6 Graduation and Awards Evening 
Monday 3 December

Christian Character Award Lora Howard

Christian Growth Award Rebecca Morling

Outstanding Effort Award Daniel Blok

Principal’s Award Celine Park

Wilson Year 6 Graduation and Awards Evening 
Tuesday 4 December

Christian Character Award Elijah Hunter

Christian Growth Award Aberly Arianto

Outstanding Effort Award Sharon Susetya

Principal’s Award Keisha Chiang

Kenwick Year 7-8 Endeavour Awards Evening 
Wednesday 5 December

Citizenship Award

Year 7A Aimee Astell

Year 7B Georgia Strickling

Year 8A Caleb Scott

Year 8B Caitlyn Randall

Leadership and Teamwork Award

Year 7A Liam Gibbon

Year 7B Aliza Merlo

Year 8A Ian Lim

Year 8B Victor Komaiya

Creative Excellence Award

Year 7 Amber O’Sullivan

Year 8 Natalia Kappert

Sportsperson Award

Year 7 Seth Povey

Year 8 Kayla Bongers

Principal’s Award

Year 7 Isaac Kuilenburg

Year 8 Samuel Bakulikira

Kenwick Year 9-12 Celebration Evening 
Thursday 6 December

Year 9

Campion Outstanding Effort Award Esther Thomas

Association for Christian Education 
Citizenship Award

Zachary Blennerhassett

Year 10

Campion Outstanding Effort Award Jason Anggadjaja

Association for Christian Education 
Citizenship Award

Allira Terpstra

City of Gosnells Scholarship Award Mukho Saw

Australian Defence Force “Long Tan” 
Leadership and Teamwork Award

Chris Holmes

Year 11

Positive Stationery Outstanding 
Student Award

Sofya Solovyova

Perm-A-Pleat Citizenship Award Jamison Fourie

Year 12

Australian Defence Force “Long Tan” 
Leadership and Teamwork Award

Chabu Kabondo

Association for Christian Education 
Service Award

Keziah Erispe

Perm-A-Pleat Citizenship Award Eryn Blennerhassett

Positive Stationery Personal 
Excellence Award

Polly Ting

Positive Stationery All Rounder of 
the Year Award

Sean Gibbon

Australian Super Award for 
Vocational Excellence

Michael Lee

Gosnells Lions Club Dux Sean Gibbon

Awards across Year Groups 

Association for Christian Education 
Creative Excellence Award

Sophia Song

Campion Sportsperson of the Year Megan Lamprecht

House Trophy Wycliffe House
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SENIOR SECONDARY OUTCOMES
Year 12 2018 WACE Results

Year 12 Summary

Total size of cohort 39

No. of ATAR students within cohort 32

No. of VET students within cohort 7

% of ATAR students in top 15 percentile (ATAR 
exceeding 85.85)

25%

No. of ATAR students offered direct university pathways 20

% of cohort achieved WACE 100%

% of VET students achieving certificates (Cert II or higher) 100%

The Western Australian Certificate of Education (WACE) is 
awarded to students who have completed Year 11 and 12 of their 
secondary education in WA. The 2018 ATAR group achieved to our 
expectations, whereby the middle 50% of students achieved a range 
of 63.05 to 85.85 percentile ranking. 

Vocational Education and Training (VET) students should be 
proud of the 100% achievement rate of VET certificates. Likewise, 
the high percentage of ATAR students offered direct university 
entry is encouraging. The remaining twelve ATAR students 
were offered alternate pathways for university entry, which is 
increasingly common.

Comparative Top 3 Student ATAR Scores

2018 2017 2016

98.55 98.9 94.4

98.35 98.25 93.2

96.95 96.25 92.4

Congratulations to Polly Ting (one of our international students) 
who achieved the highest ATAR score in the Secondary School 
(98.55).  This is a testament to her hardworking nature, especially 
considering she only started at Rehoboth Christian College at the 
beginning of 2017.

Comparative Median ATAR Scores

2018 2017 2016

74.35 75.65 78.85

Comparative Graduation Rate (% of Students 
Achieving the WACE)

2018 2017 2016

100% 86.2% 88%

It is important to note that 100 % of our students demonstrated 
the numeracy standard, 100 % demonstrated the reading 
standard and 100% demonstrated the writing standard. The high 
standard of numeracy and literacy demonstrated the increasing 
standard required to achieve the WACE, specifically the required 
achievement in Band 8 in the NAPLAN/OLNA.  

Individual Student Performance

Dux Sean Gibbon

SCSA Certificate of Distinction
Timothy Komaiya 

Richmond Cai

Certificate IV in Health and Nursing Maya Phiri

Certificate IV in Business
Tyson Littlemore 

Barbara Gitonga

Our top students performed well across a range of subjects, the 
highest scores achieved were from Human Biology, English and 
Math Methods.  Again the 2018 cohort performed to expectations 
and continued the pattern of healthy results gained by Rehoboth 
students in recent years.  

Sean Gibbon will be pursuing Data Science leading to an Advance 
Data Science (Hons) at Curtin University, Richmond Cai will be 
studying Medicine at Curtin, whilst Tim Komaiya is pursuing an 
optometry course at Curtin.

The overarching principle that has guided the Senior School that 
backdrops the numerical results is the redefinition of success in our 
student’s lives.  As Luke Brandon mentioned in his Farewell Dinner 
Speech, “in spite of what the world wants to tell us with all these 
ATAR results – we are more than just numbers”.  This statement 
is a testament to the culture that we are currently building in the 
Secondary School.
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STAFF STANDARDS 
AND WORKFORCE COMPOSITION
Workforce Composition

Teaching staff 68

Full-time equivalent teaching staff 55

Non-teaching staff 53

Full-time equivalent non-teaching staff 35

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander staff –

As at 31 December 2018

Staff Recruitment and 
Appointments
A strategic aim of ours is to employ the highest standard of 
Christian educators; staff who are recognised for their excellence 
and professional practice and who are able to fill particular needs 
within the College. These will be people who can uphold and 
actively promote the Vision, Mission, and Christian values and 
beliefs of the Association for Christian Education.

In addition to any relevant qualifications and experience, we 
consider that an active Christian lifestyle and membership of 
a local Protestant church are the best ways for a candidate to 
demonstrate their suitability for employment.

For the recruitment of teaching staff in particular, the College 
requires a pastor or minister of a Reformed theological 
background to be a member of the interview panel. The purpose 
of this is to provide feedback to the CEO and Principals with 
regards to the candidate’s spiritual maturity and Christian walk.

Teaching positions are advertised locally and nationally through 
reputable employment sites and appropriate media. The same 
procedures and standards apply for the recruitment of non-
teaching staff. 

In addition to posting vacancies on the College’s website and 
social media pages, the following avenues for recruitment were 
utilised in 2018:

• ChristianJobs.com.au

• Christian Education National (CEN) Job Vacancy List

• Teachers.on.net

• Christian Schools Australia (CSA) Job Vacancy List

• Seek.com.au

• The West Australian

Staff who were appointed or exited in 2018 included:

Wilson Primary

Appointed Position

Megan Henderson Teacher

Andrea Herweynen Teacher (DOTT Relief)

Sonia Ong Education Assistant

Renee Sherlock Teacher (DOTT Relief)

Exited Position

Leonie Groenenboom Teacher

Sarah Olivia Teacher

Kenwick Primary

Appointed Position

Hannah Bargerbos Teacher (DOTT Relief)

Esther Graham Education Assistant

Rachael Hall Education Assistant

Kristen Joubert Teacher (Early Childhood)

Elizabeth McClure Teacher (Year 2)

Jacqueline Nieuwkerk Teacher (Early Childhood)

Renee Sherlock Teacher (DOTT Relief)

Elizabeth Smoker Education Assistant  
(Special Needs)

Monica van Dam Teacher (Early Childhood)

Kate Witcbome Teacher (DOTT Relief)

Exited Position

Rachael Hall Education Assistant

Kristen Joubert Teacher (Early Childhood)

Elizabeth McClure Teacher (Year 2)
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Kenwick Secondary

Appointed Position

Chelsea Bracegirdle Teacher (Humanities and  
Social Sciences)

Kyle Dougherty Teacher (English)

Troy Eikelboom Teacher (Mathematics)

Berenice Rode Education Assistant

Shevaun Sandlund Education Assistant

Caroline van Rensburg Education Assistant

Andy Yu Teacher (Science and  
Digital Technology)

Exited Position

Jessica Khoo Teacher (Music)/IMP 
Coordinator

Sheela Nathan Teacher (LOTE)

Anne Webster Teacher (Humanities and  
Social Sciences)

Business Office/IT/Facilities and  
Maintenance/Bus Fleet

Appointed Position

Barry Becker Facilities Manager

Ann Porter Compliance Officer

Nathan Yurisich IT Technician

Exited Position

Mattheus Beukes Bus Fleet Manager

Ann Porter Compliance Officer

Staff Qualifications and 
Recruitment
All teaching staff employed at Rehoboth meet the requirements 
for registration with the Teacher Registration Board of Western 
Australia (TRBWA). To qualify for full registration, teachers must:

• hold a teaching qualification from an accredited Initial Teacher 
Education (ITE) program, or a teaching qualification recognised 
by the TRBWA as equivalent;

• demonstrate proficiency to the prescribed standard in English, 
both oral and written;

• meet the Professional Standards for Teachers in WA at the 
“Proficient” level;

• be fit and proper (requiring a criminal record check); and 

• have taught for a minimum of 100 days in the five years prior to 
application in one or more educational venues in WA or other 
Australian or New Zealand schools.

First-year teachers are registered under the TRBWA’s Provisional 
standards, which require a qualification from an accredited ITE and 
that the teacher meets the fit and proper requirements.

All teaching and non-teaching staff are required to hold a valid 
Working with Children Check at all times, and to provide a National 
Police History Check which is no more than three months old at 
the time of their appointment. The College may request that the 
National Policy History Check be updated periodically.
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PROFESSIONAL LEARNING
A key initiative of the Locus2019 Strategic Plan is the ongoing personal and professional development of our 
staff. Our aim is to foster a culture of continual improvement, accountability and spiritual growth amongst 
all staff. To that end, a range of professional learning is scheduled throughout the year and staff are strongly 
encouraged to investigate other opportunities for learning in an area of improvement or professional 
interest. By doing so, we raise the calibre of our educational programs and enhance student learning.

The professional learning undertaken by staff in 2018 has been catalogued below:

Early Childhood

AISWA Early Years Leadership Project

Building Cultural Competence in Early Childhood

Early Childhood Study Tour – Mt Evelyn Christian School

EYLF Strategies in the Classroom

Revised NQS Leaders Update

Talk and Thinking Floorbooks Workshop

Talk for Writing in the Early Years

Year 1 Observation at Southern Hills Christian College

Humanities and Social Sciences (HASS)

Geography Curriculum

SCSA Workshop

Leadership

8People

AISWA Head of Department Meetings

Beyond Compliance Leadership Workshop

VOSE Leadership Training

Learning Support and Special Needs

Abilities Expo

AISWA Act for Autism

Autism Workshop

Educating the Child with Down Syndrome

Inclusive Education Funding Session

Nationally Consistent Collection of Data

Literacy and English

General English EST Moderation Course

General English Workshop

Literacy Learning in a Play/Enquiry Classroom

Numeracy and Mathematics

Annual Maths Teachers Conference

Classpad Usage

DSF: Supporting Numeracy Development

Maths Application Workshop

Purposeful and Rich Mathematics Tasks

Occupational Health and Safety 

Consent2Go Training

CrossFit

Eco Waste Management

Fire and Extinguisher Training

Senior First Aid

Other

Consensus Moderation

Locus2019 Workshop

Legal Seminar
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Pastoral Care and Child Safety

Child Protection

Children with Anxiety

Mental Health

Protective Behaviours

Pedagogy

A Glimpse into Enquiry Training

AISWA Inquiry-Based Learning

AISWA Introduction to Reggio Learning

Education Summit

Music Workshops

Naturescape Training

Project-Based Learning Workshops

Teacher Observations 

WACE Workshop

Implementing Individual Education Plans

Growth Mindset – Mindful by Design

NAPLAN Online Workshop

Journeys of Inquiry

Leading the Growth Mindset for Teachers

ASDAN

CEN Christian Worldview Symposium

Christian Perspectives in the Curriculum

Physical Education (PE)

ACC Sports Competition Orientation Day

PE Coordinators Conference

SEQTA (Learning Management System)

Assessment Module Training

Coaches Workshop

Course Module Training

Science, Technology, Engineering,  
Arts and Maths (STEAM)

AISWA iSTEM – Integrated STEM

Creator Kids Workshops

Tackling Technologies

Vocational Education and Training

Career Development Day

Career Development Network

Career Development Practical

VET Coordinators’ Workshop

VET Coordinators’ Meeting

VET Certificate II Training
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EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
Extra-curricular activities aim to add value and enhance or supplement our students’ core learning 
experience. In many cases these activities aid in nurturing the vital partnership between Rehoboth and its 
families and encourage students to explore their gifts and develop social and leadership skills.

Activities such as competitions and excursions provide opportunities for students to apply their learning, help 
to foster community engagement, and develop a sense of citizenship. While the majority of these activities are 
designed and run by staff, some are undertaken in partnership with external agencies.

Academic

Externally Set Tasks

Kindy-Pre-Primary On-Entry Testing

LEX@R Year 5-6

LEX@R Year 7-8

NAPLAN Testing

Project Week

Year 11-12 Revision Seminars

Year 12 English and Literature Conference

Assemblies

ANZAC Assembly

Easter Assembly

Primary Celebrations

Thanksgiving Assembly

Reformation Assembly

Year 7-8 Fortnightly Assemblies

Year 9-12 Fortnightly Assemblies

Camps

Outdoor Education Camp

Year 5 Overnight Camp

Year 6 Leadership Camp

Year 7 Canberra Trip

Year 8 Overnight Camp

Year 9 Adventure Camp

Year 11-12 Study Retreat

Year 7-12 Cadets Camp

Community

Date with Dad – Pizza in the Park

Emergency Services Cadet Corps

Exo Day

Father’s Day Activities

Firm Foundations Evening

Girls’ Brigade

Graduation and Awards Evenings

Grandparents’ Afternoon Tea

Kindy Orientation Day

Meet the Teachers Evenings 

Mother’s Day Activities

Parent-Teacher Evenings

Philippines Mission Trip Quiz Night

Student Council

Teen Challenge Senior Secondary Ball

Wilson Open Day

Year 3 – Starry Night

Year 6 – Student Leadership Teams

Year 6 – Becoming a Man/Becoming a 
Woman Sessions

Year 7 Orientation Day

Year 12 – Farewell Dinner

Competitions

Australian Geography Competition 

Australian Maths Competition

Bankwest App Showcase

Education Perfect – Science Championships

Education Perfect – Language 
Championships

Young ICT Explorer Competition

Excursions and Incursions

Agmaroy Nursing Home

Army Museum of WA 

Aviation Heritage Museum

Bible Society Masterclass

Biotechnology @ Murdoch

BStreetsmart

Bunnings Garden Sustainability

Canning River Eco Education Centre

Capture Culture Photography Walking Tour

Constitutional Centre

Construction Futures Centre

Courage to Care: Righteous Among the 
Nations

End of Year Activities

Fishabilities

Fremantle Prison

History Play

Homes and Hideaways – Kings Park 
Naturescape

Human Biology – Perth Zoo

Kent Street Weir Tree Planting

Manoah House

Maritime Museum

Medieval Immersion Day
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Murdoch University Anatomy Museum

Old MacDonald’s Travelling Farms

Outdoor Education

Parliament House

Penguin Island

Perth CBD Geography Fieldtrip

Sean Avery Author Talk

SERCUL Canning River Tree Planting

Spare Parts Puppet Theatre

Spineless Wonders Wildlife Education

State Library – Suitcases: Stories of 
Migration

Student Global Leadership Summit

Woolworths Carousel Tour

House Carnivals and Activities

Athletics

Bible Tournaments

Cross-Country 

Iron Person 

Swimming

Winning House Activities

Interschool (WACSSA, ACC)

Athletics

Basketball

Cross-Country

National Christian Schools Games 

Soccer 

Swimming 

Volleyball

Literacy and Numeracy

Book Clubs (Lunchtimes)

Book Week (inc. Parade and Fair)

Lexile Reading Program Awards

Literacy Groups

Make-Your-Own Storybook Competition

Maths Pi Day

Numeracy Groups

Missions

Governor’s Prayer Breakfast

Non-Uniform Fundraising Days

Operation Christmas Child

Penabur Indonesian Students Visit

Teen Challenge Street Appeal

Year 10 Leonora Bush Mission Trip

Year 11 Indonesian Trip

Year 12 Philippines Trip 

Music and Creative Arts

Arts Festival

Choirs

Instrumental Music Program Concerts

Worship Bands

Canning Arts Show

Wilson Campus Concert

Film Screenings

Music on the Bridge

Other

Grounds Improvements

Careers Evening

Drills – Fire, Evacuation, Lockdown

Class Photos

Year 10 Work Experience

First Aid Training

Year 8 Vaccinations

Sports

AFL – Girls Competition

Athletics Training

Basketball – Year 5-6 Competition

Basketball – Year 7-8 Competition 

Edu-Dance

Little Athletics 

Soccer – Year 5-6 Competition

Soccer – Secondary Boys/Girls 
Competitions

Swimming Lessons

Swimming Training

Volleyball Tournament
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COMMUNITY SATISFACTION AND 
DEVELOPMENT

Gallup Student Poll

13-16 March 2018
We introduced the Gallup Student Poll in 2017 and continued 
with a second Poll in 2018. Our aim is to use the Poll to build up 
a picture of the non-academic aspects of students’ performance 
that will compliment how we track their academic progress via 
standardised testing such as NAPLAN and OLNA. Rather than simply 
measuring academic ranking or student satisfaction, the Gallup 
Poll asks Year 5-12 students twenty questions about their levels of 
Hope, Engagement, Wellbeing, Faith and Entrepreneurship. A new 
category of Career/Financial Literary was introduced with the 2018 
poll.

Enhancing the Hope, Engagement, and Wellbeing of our students 
is extremely important to us at Rehoboth as we seek to develop the 
“whole child”. Likewise, having the ability to measure categories 
such as Faith and Entrepreneurship provides valuable insights into 
strategic initiatives such as “Redefining Success” and “Applying Faith 
and Learning” from the Locus2019 Strategic Plan.

Participation in the poll was not mandatory and parents could 
opt out if they did not want their child to take part. For more 
information about the Gallup Student Poll, please visit  
gallupstudentpoll.com.au

2018 Results
When reading the results, the following should be kept in mind:

• This is only the second year that Rehoboth has conducted the 
poll. While we can now compare two years’ worth of results, 
the full picture of what this means for the College is still being 
formed. 

• The School Type data is derived from all Christian Education 
National schools that participated in the 2018 poll. This is 
considered to be a more accurate reflection of how Rehoboth 
is progressing than comparing to Australia overall, as these 
schools share a similar heritage and faith basis.

• In the categories of Faith, Entrepreneurship and Career/
Financial Literacy, Gallup only take the number of “strongly 
agree” (5/5) responses to the questions posed. This is part of 
Gallup’s methodology to ensure a reliable and high-quality 
set of results but can also make the results appear very 
concerning. This is not necessarily the case, as the percentage 
result should be cross-referenced with the mean to provide a 
more rounded picture.

• Just as we make changes to learning programs or implement 
educational plans for students on the basis of NAPLAN or 
OLNA results, so too are steps taken to continually monitor 
the progress and growth of students on the basis of the Gallup 
Poll. A planning day was held in June 2018 where Senior 
Leadership and staff unpacked the results with the help of a 
Gallup consultant. The discussion and ideas generated from this 
planning day were then feed into existing Locus2019 initiatives.

Graph 1: Rehoboth Mean compared with 
School Type Mean

Table 1: Percentage results in all categories tested

Category Rehoboth 

2018

Rehoboth 

2017

School Type 

2018

Hopeful 31% 38% 33%

Engaged 47% 46% 44%

Thriving 53% 51% 51%

Faith (Strongly Agree) 35% 24% 26%

Entrepreneurship 

(Strongly Agree)
1% 0% 1%

Career/Financial 

Literacy  

(Strongly Agree)

5% – 9%

The results shown here represent Gallup’s highest band in each 
category surveyed.

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 6.00 7.00 8.00 9.00

Career/Financial Literacy (out of 5)

Entrepreneurship (out of 5)

Fai th (out  of 5)

Wel lbeing (out of 10)

Engagement (out of 5)

Hope (out of 5)

Rehoboth 2018 Mean Rehoboth 2017 Mean School Type 2018 Mean

Hope  
(out of 5)

Engagement  
(out of 5)

Wellbeing  
(out of 10)

Faith  
(out of 5)

Entrepreneurship  
(out of 5)

Career/Financial  
Literacy (out of 5)

  Rehoboth 2018 Mean        Rehoboth 2017 Mean        School Type 2018 Mean

4.000.00 5.001.00 6.002.00 3.00 7.00 8.00 9.00
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Parent Satisfaction Survey

6-20 July 2018
We are committed to continuously improving the College in order to provide students with an outstanding Christian education. We believe it is 
critical to seek the input and opinions of our community on a range of issues to help us achieve that aim. The Gallup Poll is one part of this, and is 
run annually. In 2018 we also conducted a Parent Satisfaction Survey which asked parents about their experience and perceptions of Rehoboth. 

The Parent Satisfaction Survey was a mix of ratings and written response questions. Survey questions were drawn from a combination of 
sources and reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team to ensure that the College would have information on relevant areas. Responses were 
entirely anonymous and participation was not mandatory. The survey was designed by a trusted third party, Perceptiv Digital, who also 
collected results and collated the final report.

2018 Results

1. Which campus does your child/children currently attend?

Wilson K-6 Kenwick K-6 Kenwick 7-12

No. 125 93 64

% 51% 38% 26%

Please note: Families could select multiple campuses when 

responding to this question. There is therefore some overlap in the 

results.

2. Rehoboth’s Biblical basis and Christian vision are well 

understood by students, staff and parents.

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 5 128 149 3

% 0% 2% 45% 52% 1%

3. Rehoboth actively promotes and celebrates its vision and 

mission

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 33 98 146 8

% 0% 12% 34% 51% 3%

4. Rehoboth’s Biblical basis, faith, and values are effectively 

integrated into the curriculum

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 3 139 138 5

% 0% 1% 49% 48% 2%

5. Rehoboth actively encourages the development of 

students’ faith and God-given gifts

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 31 122 131 1

% 0% 11% 43% 46% 0%

6. Teachers and leaders at Rehoboth “practice what they preach”

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 34 149 84 17

% 1% 12% 52% 29% 6%

7. Students from different backgrounds and cultures are 

treated equally at Rehoboth

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 4 105 164 12

% 0% 1% 37% 57% 4%

8. Students feel comfortable in openly discussing matters of 

faith at school

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 4 100 168 13

% 0% 1% 35% 59% 5%

9. Students are encouraged to be resilient, courageous and 

independent thinkers at Rehoboth

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 19 138 118 10

% 0% 7% 48% 41% 3%

10. Rehoboth is known for providing a good environment for 

learning

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 11 150 121 2

% 1% 4% 52% 42% 1%

11. Rehoboth encourages students to perform to the best of 

their ability

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 3 33 135 114 1

% 1% 12% 47% 40% 0%

12. Students are challenged to continually improve and take 

responsibility for their learning at Rehoboth

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 3 9 169 103 2

% 1% 3% 59% 36% 1%
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13. The quality of teaching at Rehoboth is outstanding

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 3 48 141 81 13

% 1% 17% 49% 28% 5%

14. Teachers are enthusiastic and motivate students to learn

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 11 172 97 5

% 0% 4% 60% 34% 2%

15. The Principals promote a positive atmosphere and culture 

at Rehoboth

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 7 137 138 2

% 1% 2% 48% 48% 1%

16. I feel adequately informed about what the Board is and does

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 30 37 168 59 22

% 10% 13% 48% 21% 8%

17. The Board is strongly committed to Rehoboth’s Christian 

vision and values

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 7 114 98 65

% 1% 2% 40% 34% 23%

18. The Board oversees the College’s finances and resources 

effectively

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 5 114 73 92

% 1% 2% 40% 26% 32%

19. Parents are seen as partners with the teachers and College

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 35 122 122 5

% 1% 12% 43% 43% 2%

20. We receive regular and relevant communication from 

Rehoboth

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 37 95 152 0

% 1% 13% 33% 53% 0%

21. Students have access to good quality contemporary 

learning resources and technologies

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 12 165 94 13

% 1% 4% 58% 33% 5%

22. Rehoboth is successful in the development of students’ 

social and personal skills

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 4 18 124 98 42

% 1% 6% 43% 34% 15%

23. Rehoboth provides appropriate career advice to students

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 2 11 63 41 169

% 1% 4% 22% 14% 59%

24. Students have been taught skills which will be necessary 

for life after school

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 35 106 78 66

% 0% 12% 37% 27% 23%

25. I regularly recommend Rehoboth to other parents

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 3 33 106 137 7

% 1% 12% 37% 48% 2%

26. How many children do you have that are currently 

enrolled at Rehoboth?

1 2 3 4 5 No Response

No. 114 122 31 9 8 1

% 40% 43% 11% 3% 3% 0%
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Questions 27-31 asked for written responses. Answers have been 
collated under the dominant themes that emerged in order to 
compile the following graphs

27. What made you choose Rehoboth for your child’s 

education?

28. What do you think would be the biggest reason why 

Christian parents in the local area would not enrol their 

children at Rehoboth?

29. What three things do you value most about your child’s 

education?

30. What are the three most important things to you when 

selecting a school?
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Quality, commitment and  
example of teachers

Christian community and learning 
environment (culture and safety)

Academic performance  
and outcomes

Christian character and gifts  
of students are developed

Proximity to home/Location

Cost/affordability/ 
value for money

Quality of curriculum and  
delivery of learning

Excellence in all things/ 
whole-child development

Pastoral care and discipline

Course/subject offerings/ 
extra-curricular opportunities

Reputation/word of mouth

Student friends/relationships

Facilities and resources

Partnership and communication  
with parents

Clarity of vision and mission

Unable to respond/ 
No response

Closed enrolment
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31. If you were to recommend Rehoboth to friends or family, 

what would you say?

Questions 32-38 referred to the College’s Chaplaincy service. In 
2018 Rehoboth received funding from the Australian Government 
towards the cost of providing this service for students, parents and 
staff. The Principals are responsible for oversight of the program, 
and the views of parents were sought in order to gauge the 
community’s impression of the program. 

32. Are you aware that Rehoboth employs a Chaplain in 2018?

Yes No

No. 155 131

% 54% 46%

33. Do you support the concept of Chaplaincy programs at 

school?

Yes No

No. 272 14

% 95% 5%

34. If I needed to, I would feel confident to make an 

appointment to meet with Rehoboth’s Chaplain

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 26 8 123 102 27

% 9% 3% 43% 36% 9%

35. I advise my children to meet with the Chaplain as needed 

under appropriate circumstances

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 1 19 97 63 106

% 0% 7% 34% 22% 37%

36. I would like to see more, less, or no change to the 

Chaplain’s current availability

More Less No Change

No. 138 3 145

% 48% 1% 51%

37. I am adequately informed and involved in any 

communication processes arising between the Chaplain 

and my children

Strongly 
Disagree

Disagree Agree
Strongly 

Agree

Unable to 
Comment/  

Not Relevant

No. 8 22 67 23 166

% 3% 8% 23% 8% 58%

38. Have you developed any concerns about the chaplaincy 

program in the last 12 months?

Yes No

No. 2 284

% 1% 99%

Questions 39-40 also referred to the Chaplaincy program but 
were written responses asking for comments, suggestions or 
feedback. These were supplied to the Senior Leadership Team for 
consideration.

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20%

Facilities and resources

Academically focused

Academically not strong

Fees are high/know what you're getting into

Rehoboth measures up to its reputation

No response/Unable to Response

Good partnership and communication with parents

Pastoral care, students are individually cared for with a "whole-child" approach

Teachers are committed, loving and share their faith

Fai th and values

Christian community and culture is safe, welcoming, inclusive, family-oriented

Great school/Good choice for Christians

Genuine Christian education

8%0% 10%2% 12%4% 6% 14% 18%16% 20%

Genuine Christian 
education

Great school/ 
Good choice for Christians

Christian community and  
culture is safe, welcoming, 
inclusive, family-oriented

Faith and values

Teachers are committed,  
loving and share their faith

Pastoral care, students are 
individually cared for with 
a "whole-child" approach

Good partnership and  
communication with 

parents

No response/ 
Unable to Response

Rehoboth measures up  
to its reputation

Fees are high/know what 
you're getting into

Academically not strong

Academically focused

Facilities and resources
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Statement by the Board  
 

The Board has determined that the Association for Christian Education Incorporated is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose 
financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the Financial Statements.

In the opinion of the Board, the financial statements and notes as set out on pages 40 - 55 are in accordance with the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and: 

(i) comply with the Australian Accounting Standards applicable to the Association for Christian Education Inc

(ii) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association for Christian Education Inc as at 31 December 2018 and its 
performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1; and

(iii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe the Association for Christian Education Inc will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission regulation 2013 
and is signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chris van der Veen 

Chairman

 

Paul Nieuwkerk 

Treasurer

Dated at Perth 8th February 2019

 

Association for Christian Education Incorporated 
Operating Rehoboth Christian College

38   REHOBOTH CHRISTIAN COLLEGE



Independant Auditor’s Report

40 to 55,
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated  
Operating Rehoboth Christian College

Statement of Financial Position        
At 31 December 2018

              

Note 2018 2017

$ $

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 694,442 707,444

Family accounts receivable 4 391,881 294,468

Other current assets 5 86,993 92,974

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,173,316 1,094,886

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 6 17,429,001 14,347,658

Leased IT Assets 6 204,381 0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17,633,382 14,347,658

TOTAL ASSETS 18,806,698 15,442,544

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 7 968,218 779,588

Loans - current portion 8 846,965 609,803

Finance Leases 76,387 0

Employee benefits  9 456,939 424,334

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,348,509 1,813,725

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans 8 5,366,023 3,762,870

Provisions 9 606,562 556,136

Finance Leases 140,043 0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,112,628 4,319,006

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,461,137 6,132,731

NET ASSETS 10,345,561 9,309,813

EQUITY

Accumulated funds 10,297,239 9,258,628

Building Fund 0 2,863

General reserve 48,322 48,322

TOTAL EQUITY 10,345,561 9,309,813
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated  
Operating Rehoboth Christian College

Statement of Profit and Loss and other Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018        
  

2019 2018 2017

BUDGET ACTUAL

$

RECURRENT OPERATIONS - INCOME

Federal per capita grants 5,447,900 5,144,348 4,430,005

State per capita grants 2,041,598 1,992,477 1,904,266

Other grants 528,802 452,204 576,103

Tuition fees 4,197,073 4,119,827 3,864,145

Other family charges 338,049 362,261 322,504

Church grants & donations 6,000 6,099 2,100

Membership fees 25,755 24,232 23,882

Interest + Sundry Income 90,500 141,844 186,248

Total Revenue 12,675,677 12,243,292 11,309,253

EXPENSES

Employee benefits 9,348,150 8,917,312 8,390,206

Direct tuition 615,865 648,615 575,605

Depreciation and amortisation 661,861 534,492 466,687

Bad debts 30,000 71,271 84,311

Finance costs 313,131 201,272 170,156

Repairs, maintenance, grounds & utilities 419,308 427,536 356,392

Insurance and scholarships 150,759 92,155 82,575

Subscriptions, levies 136,036 71,701 69,973

Board provisions 24,470 19,581 41,145

Bus transport & travel 94,299 104,729 95,249

Other expenses 473,113 465,468 417,837

Total Expenses 12,266,993 11,554,133 10,750,138

Operating surplus for the year 408,684 689,159 559,115

Recurrent surplus for the year 408,684 689,159 559,115

NON-RECURRENT OPERATIONS 

Capital donations received 0 60,545 13,464

Non-recurrent surplus for the year 408,684 749,704 572,579

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Capital grant/ Capital contribution 711,093 288,907 120,000

Total other comprehensive income for the year 711,093 288,907 120,000

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,119,777 1,038,611 692,579

Cost of debt servicing - Principal 702,255 402,746 718,415
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated Operating Rehoboth Christian College   

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

   

Accumulated  

Funds

Capital 

Development 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Total

$ $ $ $

2018

Balance at 1 January 2018 9,258,628 2,863 48,322 9,309,813

Surplus attributable to the entity 689,159 0 0 689,159

Capital donations received 0 60,545 0 60,545

Capital Grant 288,907 0 0 288,907

Prior year adjustments -2,863 - 0 -2,863

Transfer between reserves during the year 63,408 -63,408 0 0

Sub-total 1,038,611 -2,863 0 1,035,742

Balance at 31 December 2018 10,297,239 0 48,322 10,345,561

2017 $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 January 2017 7,915,360 686,292 65,895 8,667,546

Surplus attributable to the entity 559,115 0 0 559,115

Capital donations received 0 13,464 0 13,464

Capital Grant 120,000 0 0 120,000

Prior year adjustment -32,740 0 0 -32,740

Transfer between reserves during the year 696,893 -696,893 -17,573 -17,573

Sub-total 1,343,268 -683,429 -17,573 642,267

Balance at 31 December 2017 9,258,628 2,863 48,322 9,309,813

       

The Capital Reserve includes tax deductible donations received and maintained in a separate bank account in respect of the Special Appeal 
and the General Appeal Funds.

Capital grants and building fund contributions received are recognised as non-recurrent income.
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated Operating Rehoboth Christian College   

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

     

Note 2018 2017

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from families 4,473,864 4,170,465 

Receipts from grants 7,595,511 6,910,374 

Payments to suppliers (2,128,230) (2,176,424)

Payments to employees (8,845,296) (8,117,039)

Interest Received 9,299 21,876 

Capital donations 57,681 133,464 

Finance Costs (138,686) (116,654)

Sundry Income 101,950 169,712 

Sundry Cash Flow 5,646 6,226

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,131,738 1,001,999 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 920 3,815 

Purchases in cash - property, plant and equipment (3,262,152) (1,622,274)

Net cash used in investing activities (3,261,232) (1,618,459)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayment of borrowings (net of amounts advanced) (402,746) (1,861,270)

Capital Grant received 288,907 

Loan Proceeds received 2,230,330 1,263,846 

Net cash used in financing activities 2,116,491 (597,425)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents held 12 (13,003) (1,213,885)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3 707,444 1,921,329

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 694,441 707,444
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated Operating Rehoboth Christian College   

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

      

2018 2017

$ $

2a Other grants

Students with disabilities 310,924 444,923

Universal access & chaplaincy 82,114 77,475

Sport & Cadets 56,415 50,539

Vocational training 2,750 3,166

452,204 576,103

2b Interest received

On deposits - ANZ and Westpac banks 9,299 21,876

2c Other income

Campus fundraisers & functions 5,784 802

Rent and facility hire 10,732 11,498

Paid parental leave offset 28,457 36,638

Professional learning/relief costs subsidies 7,628 3,784

Canteen & community donations 36,282 68,172

Insurance claims & adjustments 13,142 680

Principals' Reserve income 47,512 22,537

Surplus on disposal of equipment - 1,127

Jury duty subsidy - 1,357

Minor trading - books 25 687

(Loss) / Surplus on sale of Fixed Assets (27,223) 3,816

Workers' Compensation insurance/subs refund 9,520 13,274

Bad debts recovered 685 -

132,545 164,372

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balances and cash 694,302 504,028

Term deposits 0 200,444

Sub-total- unrestricted funds 694,302 704,472

Restricted purpose funds - Building Fund 140 2,972

694,442 707,444
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Association for Christian Education Incorporated Operating Rehoboth Christian College   

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

      

2018 2017

$ $

4 Trade and other receivables 

Family balances 582,043 444,674

Less: Provision for impairment 190,162 150,206

391,881 294,468

5 Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 34,813 41,500

Other receivables 52,180 51,475

86,993 92,975
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2018 2017

$ $

7 Trade and Other Payables

Creditors and accrued expenses 732,640 513,645

Sundry amounts payable - other 172,266 222,299

Amounts received in advance 63,312 43,644

968,218 779,588

8 Borrowings

CURRENT

Secured liabilities 356,299 241,080

State government - low interest loans 490,666 368,723

Total current borrowings 846,965 609,803

NON-CURRENT

Secured liabilities 2,130,016 760,582

State Government - low interest loans 3,236,007 3,002,288

Total non-current borrowing 5,366,023 3,762,870

TOTAL BORROWINGS

Secured liabilities 2,486,315 1,001,662

State Government - low interest loans 3,726,673 3,371,011

Total 6,212,988 4,372,673

Security

The State Government and other loans are secured by mortgages 

registered over the Association's land and buildings.

9 Employee Benefits

CURRENT

Long service leave 326,609 299,457

Personal and annual leave 130,330 124,877

Total current 456,939 424,334

NON-CURRENT

Long service leave 606,562 556,136
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2018 2017

$ $

10 Capital and Leasing Commitments 

(a) Operating leases and other commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the 

financial statements - minimum lease payments:

Between 1 year and 5 years - Networked printers per 12 months: 60,156 56,400

New leasing agreement with DLL Finance Solutions for 14 staff devices 23,046 -

running for  3years 3019-2021 inclusive. Settlement is by 12 quarterly payments

New leasing agreement with DLL Finance Solutions for 133 student devices 

over 3 years with 12 quarterly payments 229,161 -

The following contracts are in place on annual renewals basis:

Cleaning; software; advertising; wetlands management; after school care;

grounds and machinery maintenance. 

(b) Capital expenditure commitments 

Capital expenditure commitments contracted for: 

Secured loans undrawn at balance date - Wilson Campus Gymnasium: 234,819 1,189,000

Retention payable to contractor/(2017 - value to flow) 137,852 1,670,482

(c) Construction of a new classroom block at the Kenwick Campus has commenced.

Maximum expected value 4,610,000 4,610,000

Secured loans approved but undrawn at the balance date - 3,218,982 3,230,000

A Capital grant in the amount of $1,000,000 is approved and partially drawn

(d) Installation of Solar Panels and equipment - both Campuses

The Association has committed to this installation however the project will be completed

and ready for use in February 2019 - Value of Finance to be drawn (Westpac) 141,380 0

Standard Business Loan over 5 years repayable in monthly instalments totalling $32,136 pa

11 Contingent Liabilities

The Association has received captial grants from the Commonwealth Government for 

certain capital projects. The government has the right to recovery in the event 

the facilities are not used for the approved purpose or should the Association sell or

otherwise dispose of the facility. The amounts of capital grants repayable in that 

event are:

(a) Capital grant 2011 - Primary Schools Grant - Kenwick 2,392,795 2,392,795

Remaining equity 31 December 2018    12 years remaining 1,435,677 1,555,317

(b) Grant for Molo Road Reserve 120,000 120,000

Remaining equity 31 December 2018    19 years remaining 114,000 120,000

(c) Grant for Kenwick Classroom Block (Approved at $1,000,000) 288,907 -

Partial receipt in 2018 - entire amount recoverable 288,907 -
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2018

$

12 Cash Flow Information

(a) Reconcilation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of financial position is 

reconciled to items in the statement of cash flows as follows:

Balances of cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 1 January 2018 707,444

Balance at 31 December 2018 694,441

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the period -13,003

(b ) Reconciliation of result for the year to cash flows from all activities/statement of financial position

Net operating surplus for the year 689,159

Non-cash flows in net operating surplus:

Depreciation 534,492

Loss on disposal of equipment 27,223

Unidentified Cashflow -2,870

Operating cash effect 1,248,004

Cash flow from investing activities

Property, plant & equipment - gross value of assets acquired -3,848,352

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 920

Cash flow from financing activities:

Increase in net overall borrowings 1,840,316

Capital grants received 288,907

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase) in family accounts receivables -97,414

Decrease in sundry receivables 5,981

Increase in trade and other payables 188,630

Increase in provision for staff entitlements 83,030

Leasing Creditors 216,431

Movement in Building Fund 60,544

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents for the year -13,003
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation 

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy 

the financial reporting requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 

Commission Act 2012 and the constitution of the Association for Christian Education 

Incorporated. The Board has determined that the Association for Christian Education 

Incorporated (the “Association”) is not a reporting entity.

This financial report has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 

requirements specified by Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”) applicable to not-for-profit entities,

and the disclosure requirements below:

AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements

AASB 107: Statement of Cash Flows

AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

AASB 110: Events after the Reporting Period

AASB 114: Accounting for Leases

AASB 1031: Materiality

AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards

AASB 1054: Australian Additional Disclosures

This financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs.

No adjustments have been made in relation to the valuation of assets and liabilities in

relation to changes in specific or general price levels.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period 

unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report. The 

amounts presented in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest dollar.  The

financial statements are expressed in Australian Dollars.

(b) Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the 

current financial year where required by the Australian Accounting Standards or as 

a result of a change in accounting policy.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property and equipment is carried at cost. No revaluation reserve applies.

Values are as indicated, less any accumulated depreciation where applicable.

The valuation of assets at cost has been reduced by any identified impairment losses. 

The depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the 

useful lives of assets to the Association commencing from the time the asset

is held ready for use. 

Association for Christian Education Incorporated Operating Rehoboth Christian College   
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1 Summary of significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value based on period 

valuations less subsequent depreciation of buildings.

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment is measured on the basis of cost, less provision for depreciation.

The carrying amount of equipment is reviewed annually by 

management to ensure that the value does not exceed the recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows

that are likely to be received from any subsequent sales.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of each asset over its 

expected useful life. Additions during the year are capitalised at cost.

Land is not depreciated.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate

Buildings 2.0%

Demountables 10.0%

Computer Equipment 25.0%

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15.0%

Motor Vehicles (Buses) 15.0%

Library Books 18.0%

The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are 

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable 

amount if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the 

carrying amount. Any gains and losses are included in the Income Statement. 
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Association reviews the carrying values of its 

assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been 

impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the 

higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the 

asset carrying value. Any excess of the carrying value over its recoverable 

amount is transferred to the Income Statement. 

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and term deposits held with banks.

(g) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from 

services rendered by employees to the end of the reporting year. Employee benefits 

that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits payable later than one year have been calculated using a 

measure of probability that payment will be required. 

Contributions are made by the Association to the employee nominated superannuation 

funds. These are charged as expenses when incurred.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as 

a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 

result, and where  the outflow can be measured reliably.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting

period for goods and services received by the Association during the reporting period

which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability. These amounts

are generally settled within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

(j) Income Tax

The Association is exempt from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 

as amended.

(k) Leases 

Lease payment for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits 

remain with the lessor, are charged as an expense over the life of the lease term. 

Finance lease liabilities are capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Leased assets are written off over the lease period by way of a leased assets

depreciation charge. 
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(I) Revenue and other income 

A distincition is made between revenue from operations (recurrent income) and 

revenue received for capital purposes (non-recurrent income).

Income from tuition fees and related income is recognised when the service is delivered.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to the purchaser.

Income from recurrent operational grants is recognised in the year to which

the funding relates. When there are conditions attached to the grant revenue relating to

the use of those grants for specific purposes, the income is recognised in the statement of 

financial position as a liability until such conditions are met or services provided. 

The Association receives government grants to fund capital projects from time to time.

These capital grants are credited to the Capital Development Reserve until drawn.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for 

floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.

Donations and special contributions are recognised when received.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST)

(m) Good and services tax (GST)

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where 

the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.

In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset  

or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement

of financial position are shown inclusive of GST, where GST applies.

(n) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Management evaluates estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial 

statements based on historical knowldege and best available current information.

Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on 

current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Association.

n-i Key estimates - Impairment

The Association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting year by evaluating 

conditions specific to the Association that may be indicative of impairment.

n-ii Key judgements - provision for imapirment of receivables

Included in trade receivables at 31 December 2018 are fees receivable from parents for 

which there is some doubt as to the recoverability of the amounts owing. Consequently,

a provision for doubtful debts of $190,162 has been adjusted at 31 December 2018
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o ) Economic Dependence 

The continuing operation of the Association is dependent upon achieving and 

maintaining appropriate enrolment numbers, the continuation of adequate funding from 

the Australian Commonwealth and State Governments in respect of operational and 

capital grants and the achievement of operating surpluses and positive operating cash flows.

(p ) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

Management has reviewed all the new and revised Accounting Standards and

interpretations issues by the AASB that are relevant to the Association and effective

for the current annual reporting period. As a result of this review, the Board

has determined that there is no material impact of the new and revised Standards

and Interpretations on the Association and, therefore, no material change

is necessary to the Association's accounting policies. 
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FEE SCHEDULES – APRIL 2019 to MARCH 2020
A number of factors are taken into consideration when calculating tuition fees for the coming year. These include, but are not limited to, 
competitive staff salaries, projected expenses, a comparison to similar schools, the Consumer Price Index for Education, and the overall 
viability of the College.

The Board are mindful of the financial cost to families choosing to enrol their children at Rehoboth. Our aim and Constitutional mandate is to 
make Christian education affordable and accessible to as many Christian families as possible. To that end, we are satisfied that the proposed 
tuition fees compare favourably with five reference schools which were used as a basis for comparison in calculating 2019 fees.

It is worth noting that tuition fees only account for about 33% of the Association’s income. This represents the gap between the total cost of 
educating an individual student and funding gratefully received from State and Federal governments (roughly 66% of income). As a not-for-
profit organisation, the Association also operates on a “break even” budget and does not derive a profit from any fees charged.

SECURITY OF ENROLMENT FEE $ Per Student

A Security of Enrolment Fee applies per student, for the first two students enrolled and is payable within fourteen days of 
the date of a family’s Letter of Confirmation. This fee is credited to the family’s College account in the first Term following 
the student’s commencement but is otherwise non-refundable. The College reserves the right to allocate a place to 
another student in the event that this fee is not paid by the due date.

200

Resident Student Tuition Fees

FIRST STUDENT $ Base  

Per Term

$ Discounted  

Per Term 1

Kindergarten 677 616

Pre-Primary 1,574 1,433

Primary (Year 1-6) 1,574 1,433

Secondary (Year 7-12) 1,971 1,794

SECOND STUDENT $ Base  

Per Term

$ Discounted  

Per Term

Kindergarten 576 524

Pre-Primary 1,338 1,218

Primary (Year 1-6) 1,338 1,218

Secondary (Year 7-12) 1,676 1,526

THIRD STUDENT $ Base  

Per Term

$ Discounted  

Per Term

Kindergarten 407 371

Pre-Primary 945 860

Primary (Year 1-6) 945 860

Secondary (Year 7-12) 1,183 1,077

International Students Tuition Fees

FIRST STUDENT $ Base  

Per Term

$ Discounted  

Per Term 1

Kindergarten 2,537 2,309

Pre-Primary 4,157 3,783

Primary (Year 1-6) 4,157 3,783

Secondary (Year 7-12) 5,557 5,057

Please note: The eldest child currently enrolled in each family is considered to be the first child for billing purposes
1 $ discount per Term: This rate applies once a family has completed 5 hours of volunteer time as part of the College Support Scheme.

For a sample of Secondary elective charges please visit rehoboth.wa.edu.au/enrolments/fees.
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BUS SERVICE
Rehoboth continues to own and operate a fleet of 
three modern buses that is managed in-house. 

The fleet services the Canning Vale, Southern River and Success/
Leeming areas for daily transport to and from the College. Teachers 
also utilises the fleet for excursions, carnivals, camps and other 
offsite activities.

All families wishing to use the bus for home/school transport in 
2019 are required to complete an application form, and all students 
are required to sign their agreement to the Conditions of Use. It 
is expected that students and their parents will be familiar with 
Rehoboth’s Bus Service and Conditions of Use Policy.

Proposed 2019 Bus Fee Schedule

Full-time users (usage is 60% or more) $ cost

Per Term – one student 214

Per family, per Term – two or more students 317

Part-time users (usage is less than 60%) $ cost

Per Term – one student 123

Per family, per Term – two or more students 193

Casual users $ cost

Per journey 6

Transfer $ cost

To Kenwick Train Station (afternoons only) 34

Between campuses Free
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PURPOSE | PARTNERSHIP | PREPARATION 
COMMITTED TO DISTINCTLY CHRISTIAN EDUCATION

WILSON PRIMARY K-6

08 9458 3637

wilson@rehoboth.wa.edu.au

22 Dalton Place

WILSON WA 6107

KENWICK PRIMARY K-6

08 9452 1245

kenwickprimary@rehoboth.wa.edu.au

94 Kenwick Road

KENWICK WA 6107

KENWICK SECONDARY 7-12

08 9459 7700

secondary@rehoboth.wa.edu.au

Entry via Brixton Street

KENWICK WA 6107

BUSINESS OFFICE

08 9452 1833

business@rehoboth.wa.edu.au

92 Kenwick Road

KENWICK WA 6107

ENROLMENT ENQUIRIES

08 96557 3300

enrolments@rehoboth.wa.edu.au

92 Kenwick Road

KENWICK WA 6107

rehoboth.wa.edu.au

distinctlychristianeducation.com.au

seednurtureflourish.net

ABN 90 553 423 792

CRICOS Provider No. 01984B


